Editorial: 

 CRT A LOCAL INITIATIVE

 Way back in 2003, during a human rights conference at Amsterdam the Editor was heckled by a Non-Resident-Indian professor that he should be grateful to soft Indian government for allowing him to visit abroad. The Editor replied that after two years his passport will expire and he will not see him again in Amsterdam or any other country. In past, the issuance of the travel documents to the Editor was faux pa by the government. The Editor after expiry of the passport in 2004 applied for new one, which till date is not being issued. Even in the year 2006, when the Editor was nominated for prestigious Ludovic Trarieux Award 2006 and the organizers including the human rights defenders and UN Special Rapporteur on Human Rights Defenders appealed the Indian state for issuing him the travel documents, but the appeal was not honored. The Editor now has been invited by Howard University’s Lecture Series in February 2010, in which leading academicians of US and outside are likely to participate but the Editor is unlike to get his travel documents. 

Travel document is not a fundamental right and like other rights, it is not absolute as elucidated in the Passport Act. The denial of travel documents is used as a matter of policy to stifle the dissent, tame and control the voices. Travel document applications of thousands of citizens are pending before the passport authorities for years together without formally rejecting them. It has become a public issue. The dissident voices from non-democratic and authoritarian countries are frequent visitors to other countries. Like the civil society leaders of Pakistan, speaking truth about their country without any hindrance visit Delhi, to attend meetings in Indian International Center and Habitat Centre and no such problems are being faced by them. Even the victims turned agents of change are allowed to receive the prestigious awards outside, as has been the case of Mukhtara Mai of Pakistan, a rape victim, who caused huge embarrassment to Pakistani government. The Indian state’s obsession with its sovereignty and control on the Kashmiri population is using every discretion to suit its authoritarian policies. Kashmir is probably the only conflict zone at least in Asia, where a larger section of the society have been deprived of travel documents. 

According to the media reports more than 60,000 families have been indexed, not only the former militants but the students, patients, Hajj pilgrims, sportsmen etc are deprived of this universally recognized right under Article 13 of the Universal Declaration on Human Rights and Article 12 of International Covenant of Civil and Political Rights (ICCPR) that too in the era of globalization, when world has turned into a global village. In desperation people are making individual efforts for obtaining the travel documents, but very few have been “lucky”.  There are thousands perusing and lobbying individually with police officials, politicians, ministers without any success.     

Keeping in view the problem, an initiative “Campaign for Right to Travel” (CRT) was initiated by the aspirants, whose travel documents are denied or withheld. The CRT is a collective initiative for mounting pressure on the state about the problems they are facing. They have very strong argument that why Muslim majority population is facing this problem when the government has no lawful reason to reject the applications as majority of the aspirants are ordinary people. Few aspirants have taken the matter to the J&K High Court. Despite the High Court directions they are yet to receive travel documents. The issue is not only restricted to Kashmir valley. According to the statistics available with the passport authority in Jammu division also the Majority community living in seven districts are facing the same problem with the result, it has caused social and economical problem to them. Even the relatives of separatist politicians and former militants have been axed. Nevertheless, the present Chief Minister has assured during a press conference that nobody would be stopped and everybody is free to travel, but nothing has changed, notwithstanding, the issuance of the NOC from different intelligence agencies is a state subject. It is not surprising; perpetrators who are booked in heinous criminal cases are able to manage travel documents. Like Major Avtar Singh against whom charge of murdering a human rights defender, Jaleel Andrabi is pending in the court. In his case, High Court directions had that his passport should be impounded and he cannot leave the country, but he is roaming free abroad. 

The Kashmiris get further disturbed to learn that in Pakistan Administered Kashmir (PAK) anyone can get travel documents within a fortnight. Hardly, it has ever remained an issue there. Nearly, four hundred thousand diaspora from that part of Kashmir have settled in gulf countries and UK and are sending huge remittance to home. While as here, the bona fide job aspirants, professionals who have limited job opportunities in Indian state finally end up in getting registered with Office of Employment Exchange. 

The CRT is committed to its campaign to make it an issue to expose the façade of Indian state claiming Kashmiris as its citizens, and are busy in engaging the support from diaspora. The image obsession is Indian state’s Achilles heel which needs to be touched, and it will definitely make a difference and will compel the state functionaries to do something in order to avoid the “humanitarian outcry”, which is always irritating to the Indian state. More and more professionals, young students have to get engaged with the campaign and the campaign has to be restricted strictly to right to travel. CRT is also committed to make it a human and economical issue without giving any opportunity to the state that it is being done for the security and safety of the state, as we know that all the rights and dissident voices are being fixed under this one-liner. The CRT will also provide an opportunity to connect people in future for other rights as well.  In conflict the massive challenge is connecting and persuading people for collective actions. The CRT have made a beginning and has to expose the contradictions of the state about controlling mechanism of the Indian state, which would have regulated the breathing of people, which is beyond their control. 

ONE MORE KILLING BY TEARGAS SHELL

On October 2, twelve-year old, student Irfan Ahmad Lone son of Ghulam Rasool Lone of Drangbal area of north Kashmiri’s Baramulla district was killed by a teargas shell allegedly fired by police while disbanding a usual Friday protests. Irfan’s killing was third killing in a row by teargas shell since May 2009. Before Irfan’s killing, Arif Ayoub, 16, of Gandarpora, Eidgah, and Nisar Ahmad Mir, 22, of Old Barzulla, were killed by police teargas shells. 

The SSP Baramulla said police fired teargas canisters to prevent protests who tried to attack the police station. In the action one of the protesters was injured who later succumbed in Srinagar hospital. The police claimed that he died of a cardiovascular arrest, a claim strongly contested by the victim’s family. However, the deputy commissioner Baramulla ordered a magisterial probe into the killing.
Irfan’s killing triggered massive protests in the area, which continued for four consecutive days. Slogans against police and in favour of Aazadi (freedom) were raised during the demonstrations. In police and protesters clashes twenty-five persons got injured. Police used tear smoke shells and also fired rubber bullets to quell the relentless protesters.      
A few days later a reporter of The Informative Missive visited Drangbal area of Baramulla and talked to the bereaved family about the killing.

Irfan’s mother Tasleema, 38, was the first to talk to IM stated: “On October 2, Irfan spent most of the day in the locality. He also lend his hand in construction work of a local mosque. At 2:15 pm he came home after offering Friday prayers to have rest. Meanwhile, a guest arrived and I sent Irfan to Baramulla market to fetch some vegetables. The market is about 2 kms away from our house. At 3:15 pm, he left to the market with a woman of our neighborhood. The duo boarded a three-wheeler and left. That was the last time I saw him alive.”

While mourning Irfan’s death she said, “To reach to the vegetable market Irfan has to crossover a footbridge. According to the woman assisting him said they disembarked from the three-wheeler and Irfan moved to cross the bridge to reach the market.  According to the eyewitnesses, while my son was walking through the vegetable market and reached near Masjid-e-Jalal Sahib, people in hundreds came out of the mosque after Friday prayers and staged pro-freedom demonstration (a regular Friday practice). To thwart the protest, the police forces deployed there resorted to baton charge, teargas shelling and aerial firing.”

“The violent police action forced the protesters and passersby to run for safety. There was a complete chaos. My son also ran for safety and moved towards footbridge. But being minor, he couldn’t run fast to reach to a safer place, and consequently, police targeted him with a teargas shell. The shell hit behind his left ear and he was flattened on the road. Since the shell was fired from a close range caused grave injuries to him. His head swelled and blood oozed copiously from his nose. There was also visible grave wound on his right shoulder, which we couldn’t understand whether was the result of bullet or shell splinter injury. And he died on spot,” Irfan’s mother bereaved.
The victim family said that they received the news of Irfan’s killing at 4.00 pm, from one of their relatives, who works in a shop at Jalal Sahib Market. The incident was also witnessed by Irfan’s other relatives, having shops in the town.  According to the family Irfan after being hit by shell was rushed to district hospital Baramulla by some youth.  

Irfan’s brother, Aadil Ahmad, a 10th standard student narrated: “I was at maternal house and my mom called me to inform that Irfan had got injured and was moved to district hospital. Shocked and weeping, I rushed to see my brother. When I reached near hospital gate, I found Irfan was being taken into an ambulance to shift him to Sheri-e-Kashmir Institute of Medical Sciences (SKIMS), Soura Srinagar. I also jumped into the ambulance. At SKIMS, the doctors pumped his heart and immediately declared him dead at about 7pm. His medical reports stated that he died of injuries caused by teargas shell and cardiovascular arrest.”

He added: “We took his body back and reached Baramulla town at 9 pm. People in thousands were waiting at Azad Gunj. As we were moving towards our native village Drangbal in an ambulance, but the agitated people didn’t allow us to proceed. They took his body in procession towards Drangbal. The protesters raised slogans against police and in favour of freedom. They demanded stern action against the guilty. At about 11pm we reached our native village. Finally, his last rites were performed at 1 am in our ancestral graveyard.” 
While rubbishing the Chief Minister, Omar Abdullah June 2009 claim that a magistrate with the law-enforcing agencies must be present while dealing with law and order situations, locals said not a single officer from administration or any magistrate was present on the spot of incident. 

Tasleema added, “Neither my son participated in the protest nor he pelted even a stone. He had gone there only to fetch vegetables.”

While profiling Irfan his mother said, “Irfan was student of 7th standard at Centre High School Baramulla. He was not only industrious student but a heartthrob of our locality.  He was loved by one and all for his affable and amiable conduct. He offered five time prayers and often remained engaged with religious obligations. Being a dutiful son, at home he assisted and helped me in all sorts of domestic work. Despite being younger in my two sons, he prematurely took most of the family responsibilities. He played son as well as daughter to me. His killing created void in my life never to fill again.”   

The victim family also alleged that on October 3, when some of the relatives were on way to Police Station, Baramulla to file FIR they were not allowed by CRPF and Police personnel deployed there. The victim family further alleged that on same day (October 3) five of their relatives, who went to Baramulla to hire a tent in order to accommodate visiting mourners, were beaten severely by troopers. Many of them received injuries. Among the injured were Farooq Ahmad Mir (uncle of the deceased), Mudasir Ahmad, Ishfaq Ahmad, Bilal Ahmad and some other youth. 

On October 2, Senior Superintendent of Police, Baramulla said, “Just after Friday prayers protesters tried to attack the Police Station. Policemen fired teargas canisters to disperse them. One of the protesters was injured in the clashes and he later succumb in Srinagar hospital. As per initial reports he died of a cardiovascular attack on the spot. But we are waiting for the final report to initiate the inquiry.” 

The Deputy Inspector-General of Police, told media that preliminary investigations had revealed that the boy was not hit directly by the shell, but ‘received splinters of the shell.’ “He has got small wound, which might have resulted into his death,” he claimed. 

On October 3, the Deputy Commissioner (DC) Lateef-u-Zaman Deva ordered a magisterial probe into the killing and appointed Additional Deputy Commissioner Mohammad Ashraf Shantoo as inquiry officer. The DC said it was a ‘brazen violation’ of existing Standard Operating Procedure for law and order ‘if the youth was killed by the shell.’ 
Various state ministers visited Baramulla to take stock of the situation. Assuring justice, Rural Development, Law and Panchayat, said an inquiry would be initiated which would submit its report within 15 days. 

On October 4, Deputy Commissioner told media that the probe panel has studied the video footage of the incident that suggests Irfan died due to injuries inflicted on his back and side of neck. “We shall submit report to the government within 21 days.”

RR SHOT DEAD A STUDENT

On October 24, a student of BA Ist year, Sajad Ahmad Ganai, 20, son of Ghulam Mohi-ud-din Ganai of Ganaipora, Kralgund, Handwara was allegedly shot dead by the troops of 32 Rashtriya Rifles (RR) camped at Watergam. The army claimed that it had killed a Fidayeen (suicidal) militant armed with an axe who had injured seriously a trooper on guard at Watergam camp, a claim strongly contested by Sajad’s family and villagers. The family alleged army fired at him without any provocation. A case under Section 302 was registered in Dangiwacha police station against army. The civil administration and army ordered separate inquiries into the killing. 

Sajad’s village Ganaipora is about 85kms from Srinagar city, the summer capital of state. The area is literally under military siege with army omnipresent. But it didn’t deter the villagers enraged over Sajad killing from registering the protest. The villagers from Kralgund and Watergam, Handwara blocked Baramulla-Handwara highway to protest the killing and demanded that the guilty should be punished immediately. 

A team of The Informative Missive visited the Sajad’s village Handwara and spoke to his family and residents of the area about the incident.

Sajad’s father Ghulam Mohi-ud-din Ganai, 75, while narrating the incident to The Informative Missive said, “On October 24, with the dawn break, I woke up Sajad to offer prayers in a local mosque. But he insisted that he would offer it at home and I left for mosque. On my return, I found him reciting Holy Quran in his room. After few moments, he joined me for tea in the Kitchen. While having tea, I asked him wasn’t he going to orchard (belongs of our distant neighbour) where he was working as part-timer (reaping fruits) in order to support his education. He replied no, and informed me that the wife of orchard owner passed away. When I asked him then what will he do the whole day? He answered that he will pay a visit to our own orchard situated at Super Naghama village (3 kms away from my house). And he left for there at 8am.”

The visibly shocked father further said, “When he didn’t returned back as the noon passed. My wife got perturbed and asked about his delay. I pacified her and told her that he might be with some of his friends and will be with us soon.  Unaware about his fate, after having lunch, I went to Ganaipora main road, where I was working with a local contractor as supervisor on a road contract. While busy in work Chowkidhaar Hamza Wagay, my colleague informed me that he had received a phone call from Dangiwacha police station that Sajad’s bullet-ridden body is lying with it. “

“In shocked state, I was accompanied by some elderly persons including village head to the Police Station. In police station, I found Sajad’s body lying in the courtyard. On examining his body, I found four bullets were fired on his body. One on the right side of his chest that pierced through his backside, one bullet was fired on the palm of his right hand, two bullets, one each on the left and right side of his abdomen,” the old father mourned.
Sajad’s family, when enquired about his killing from police, the police quoted army told, Sajad was killed while trying to enter the Watergam camp and attacked a sentry (guard) with an axe prompted the army soldiers to fire bullets at him, with the result he died. 

Terming the army claim as a blatant lie Sajad’s cousin wishing anonymity said, “Sajad was neither carried an axe nor any ammunition, army might have killed him for meeting any of their interest.” 

“For the sake of argument, if he would have an axe in his hand or might have attacked a trooper, why didn’t the troopers fired at his legs or arms, so that his life could have been saved,” questioned Sajad’s cousin.

He further said: “Villagers of Watergam dwelling around the army camp when contacted by us told that Sajad was killed inside the camp. The residents of Watergam had heard few gun shots at 9:15am which they said were originated from the camp. After which news of Sajad’s killing spread in the Watergam area.”   

The natives of the village said, there is no one in the village to buy the army version. The story dished out by the troops was only to put a lid on the crime and get away with it. 

Zoona 45, Sajad’s mother while ridiculing the army claims and media reports said, “Army first claimed that they have killed a Fidayeen (suicidal) militant and later claimed that they have killed a mentally challenged person, who tried to intrude into their camp at Watergam and injured a trooper there. My son was neither a Fidayeen nor a mentally retarded as reported in media. We were further enraged when a news report aired by All India Radio reported that 32 RR killed a Fidayeen at Watergam, Handwara. The army claim was a lie to cover up their crime. Army neither shows us their injured trooper nor any axe. They can’t do so as none was injured and no axe was found.” 

 “My son was a competent student and his great mental abilities were beyond any doubt. Ask anyone in our village. He was a good artist and was interested in poetry. He was a religious person and committed against social and moral evils. He had passed his 12th standard examinations and was aiming for a high carrier. With his death the family is left with no hope. Being elder son, he has taken gigantic family responsibilities and was successfully fulfilling them. Of his own he was supporting his educational needs,” Zoona added.
The agonized inhabitants of Watergam and Kralgund had collected Sajad’s body at about 4pm from police station and brought it to his native place in a procession. People in hundreds demonstrated on the roads against the killing by army. The protesters including women and children raised slogans against army and in favour of freedom. The protestors were demanding immediate action against the army personnel who they alleged killed the youth.

Ghulam Mohi-ud-Din said, “The protesters from nearby villages kept my son’s dead body in a coffin on Handwara-Baramulla highway at about 5:30pm and staged a sit-in on the highway at Ganaipora. The protesters blocked the vehicular movement and refused to bury the body till the guilty not arrested and taken to task.”

 To pacify the crowd Deputy Commissioner (DC) Kupwara, Showkat Ahmad Mir, Superintendent Police Kupwara and other officials visited the spot and requested the protesters to lift the sit in and bury Sajad’s body, but they resisted and demanded for immediate action. 

“On assurance from DC and other state officials of justice and after registration of case against 32 RR the sit-in was lifted at 11 pm. Thereafter, Sajad’s body was taken to home where it was kept for a night and following day it was laid to rest in a local graveyard,” uttered the old father in broken voice.

Army spokesman Lt Col JS Brar said Sajad was killed after he had ‘intruded’ into the Watergam camp and attacked a trooper with an axe and injured him seriously. In the retaliatory gunfire, he was shot dead inside the camp,” he said. Brar said that an inquiry has been ordered into the incident and FIR lodged.

DIG North Kashmir said, “We have registered an FIR after army approached us with their version and we have also registered an FIR under section 302 following the complaint by Sajad’s parents.” “The post-mortem of the body was conducted by a team of doctors headed by BMO Dangiwacha. The entire process of post mortem has been recorded in video,” he said, adding,”We have also carried out his DNA profiling”.

On October 25, the deputy commissioner, Kupwara, Showkat Ahmad Mir, ordered a magisterial inquiry into the killing. “I have asked my additional deputy commissioner to conduct the inquiry and submit a report within a month,” Mir said. Police said Sajad was not a militant and a case had been registered against the army on an application by his family. 

CAMPAIGN FOR RIGHT TO TRAVEL, A LOCAL INITIATIVE
On October 17, for the first time state subjects of Jammu and Kashmir denied of Universally Guaranteed Right under Article 12 of International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights (ICCPR 1996) to travel, launched an initiative “Campaign for Rights to Travel” (CRT). CRT comprises ten executive members including businessmen, students, political dissidents and their relatives. 

The aspirants held a press conference in a local hotel Ahdoos at Srinagar to invite the attention of state administration and civil society. Besides media professionals the programme was attended by social and human rights activists, professionals, businessmen, students, political dissidents etc.


CRT emphasized on the need and importance of collective effort to mount pressure on the state for issuance of travel documents, the denial of which culminates into social and economical problems.  While underscoring the fragility of individual efforts the CRT said, seldom the plight of the aspirants have been reported in media, but that failed to make any impact, and the sufferings continue.  

While quoting a media report appeared in Indian Express in 2006, the CRT stated that sixty thousand permanent residents of Jammu and Kashmir have been put on a security-blacklist (index) by various intelligence agencies and denied travel documents. The media reports do not made much difference thus the aspirants realizing the need of joint effort and the CRT was formed. 
CRT said, Article 12 of (ICCPR 1966), which India has signed and ratified, guarantees: everyone has right to leave the country including his own and this right should not be restricted to any restrictions. 

Parvez Imroz, a renowned human rights activist said, “This denial of travel documents, as a means to control and collective punishment, has adversely affected all the segments of civil society with consequences on educational rights, trade and business rights, employment rights, religious rights and human rights.”  

“Globalization has changed the world. People want to travel to other countries for various reasons including jobs. But lakhs of people are being denied passports here and thus are not able to travel. This disturbs the economic set up of the state as well,” Imroz said.
Giving his own example, Imroz said he has been invited by four US universities for delivering lecture, but it is unlikely that he would be given passport. “If social activists of India are allowed to acquire travel documents despite they embarrass India, why not a Kashmiri?” he questioned

                   “Even people in conflict areas are allowed to exercise this right freely. Palestinian National Authority (PNA) is able to issue passports as per the Oslo Agreement since 1995. The passport is seen as a travel document and not as a proof of nationality. All Palestinian refugees in Jordan have full Jordanian citizenship except refugees from Gaza strip, which was administered by Egypt till 1967.Even they are entitled to temporary Jordanian passports, which do not entitle them to full citizenship rights such as the right to vote and employment with the government”,  CRT quotes.
“In the index not only political dissidents and human rights activists figures but students, professionals and even Haj pilgrims and sportsmen”,  Zamrooda Habib coordinator of CRT expressed. 


Holding the press release of CRT she further said, “Students are denied travel documents and they are unable to move out to study at centers of excellence. Traders and businessmen are unable to strike partnerships because of these restrictions. Skilled unemployed youth and unskilled laborers can not move out to earn. Civil society leaders including human rights activists are particular targets of these restrictions so that the crimes committed by the state in Jammu and Kashmir remain relatively invisible, providing perpetrators with further immunity and impunity. Even purely religious obligation of undertaking the Hajj Pilgrimage is being denied to people here,”  

“Likewise militant relatives are not given passport. Documents of political activists, businessmen and students are not entertained as their relatives are involved in militancy or they have expressed their opinions publicly,” she revealed. 

              Dr Zafar Mehdi a renowned social activist said, “My fault was that I expressed my thoughts about Kashmir issue and the denial is to suppress our voices.”

Similarly MY Naqash, a politician questioned, “If Pakistan can issue passports to political dissidents why not India” 
Masooda Parveen, whose son got scholarship in England but could not go due to passport denial said, “He was not granted passports as they want Muslims to remain backward. My son is gold medalist and got online scholarship, but he was not issued travel documents from last three years.”


However, nodal officer CID, SSP Israr Khan said Section 5 Clause 2 of Passport Act makes it amply clear that under what circumstances government can put restrictions or deny passports on grounds enumerated in Section 5.

“Passports can be held back if somebody would indulge in any activity prejudicial to security of the state,” Khan said. 

`He, however said, following instructions from Chief Minister they are re- verifying cases held on militancy grounds.

“We are re-verifying them and issuing passports,” Khan said, adding, “So far we issued 416 passports to such people.”

SUFFERINGS OF PASSPORT ASPIRANTS 
· GOVT DENIES PASSPORT TO AGED COUPLE FOR PERFORMING HAJJ

ACCUSES THEM OF BEING DISTANT RELATIVES OF GEELANI

Oct 6: The High Court reserved its judgment on government action to deny passport to an aged couple for Hajj. The government, according to their counsel, had denied them passport for being associated with Jamaat-I-Islami and having relations with Hurriyat (G) chairman Syed Ali Shah Geelani.

Sharief-Din-Shah, son of Noor Din Shah, and his wife Zareefa Begum, according to his counsel Bashir Ahmad Dar, have submitted their forms with private tour operator for Hajj. Counsel informed the High Court on Tuesday the couple has to leave for the pilgrimage on November but the government has denied them the passport. 

Dar said passport has been denied on allegations that Sharief Din Shah, who is teacher, was associated with the Jamiat Islami, and they are distant relatives of Syed Ali Shah Geelani. 

Counsel said being relative, whether close or distant, of Syed Ali Shah Geelani was no sin. Besides, no criminal case was pending against the petitioners and denying them passport to perform Hajj was interference in religious affair, he said. He said the petitioners should be given passports to perform the Hajj. 

The High Court has reserved the judgment on the issue. Last year, the state government had denied passport to 12 persons on similar grounds. Later, the High Court upbraided the State for the act. On the High Court directions the state government had allowed 12 pilgrims to perform Hajj.
· ISSUE PASSPORT TO GEELANI’S GRANDSON: HIGH COURT

Oct 7: The High Court directed the state government and passport office authorities to issue travel documents to the grandson of chairman Hurriyat Conference (G), Syed Ali Geelani for pursuing higher studies. Justice Hakim Imtiyaz Hussain turned down the plea by CID that the applicant, Anees-ul-Islam, son of Altaf Ahmad Shah of Bemina was a relative of Geelani and hence can’t be allowed to travel to foreign country. 

 The applicant’s counsel submitted that following submission of the application for the passport, Anees was informed by the authorities that CID had recommended that he should not be given the passport and it had even given negative report against him. The applicant had completed his bachelor’s degree in business administration from Jalandhar in Punjab and had applied for master’s degree in a foreign country.

 
Anees’s counsel said he was not involved in any anti-state activity, which was also acknowledged by a police officials present in the court. Terming the non-issuance of passport to Anees as illegal act by the authorities, the court directed the state government and passport authorities to follow the court direction.
· THOUSANDS DENIED PASSPORT FOR ‘ADVERSE’ CID REPORT

WE ACT ON POLICE ADVICE: RPO

Oct 17: No less a person than the Jammu and Kashmir chief minister, Omar Abdullah had to intervene last month to facilitate the issue of passport to a Kashmiri soccer player selected by the International Sports Academy Trust for training in Spain. Unless it was just an isolated gesture, thousands of others have not been as lucky even after having fulfilled all the legal requirements for the purpose. Reason: ‘adverse’ security reports. “The causes of adverse security reports vary from the presence of a relative in Pakistan, to pursuing a case to trace out a missing kin,” sources told media, adding the CID of the Police Department had been black-listing” the passport aspirants on flimsy grounds.

Razia Sultan of Boniyar, Uri, is a social worker. Her father, Raja Ali Mardhan, a block president of Congress, went missing on May 13, 1990. Razia lodged an FIR against the army and is pursuing the case since then. Like her father, Razia has been a loyal Congress supporter. She had applied for passport in 2002 but the CID has not given her the security clearance till date. Razia attributed the denial of passport to her pursuit of father’s case against army. “When a social worker and daughter of a political leader can be deprived of passport, the plight of common people is anybody’s guess,” she said.

Abdul Aziz Malik of Zandfaran, Baramulla, a senior Peoples Democratic Party worker of Narwaw Block, applied for passport in 2004 but has been denied CID clearance. He said his brother, Noor-ud-din Muhammad, had migrated to Pakistan along with his uncle in the wake of 1947 partition and has settled in Lahore. He married in Pakistan and has three children.

“The CID has denied me the clearance citing the reason of my brother’s presence in Lahore,” he told media. After 1947, he said, he had never seen his brother and his family while the only means of communication with them was through letters. “Being a citizen of Pakistan for the past 62 years, my brother can’t be the reason behind denial of passport to me,” he said.

Ghulam Nabi Wani, a National Conference worker of Zandfaran (Baramulla), too has been denied the CID clearance on the plea that his son is in Pakistan.

Mir Altaf of Gantmullah, Baramulla, a contractor, has been waiting for the past six years for his and his mother’s passport. Altaf’s brother, Mumtaz, had crossed the LoC in 1990 and never came back. According to his family, Mumtaz has settled in Karachi and has a happy married life with four children and a good business there. Altaf’s mother, 95-year old Zaveira Begum, wished to go for Hajj but the CID denied her the clearance citing the reason of her son’s presence in Pakistan.

Sajad Ahmad Najjar of Khanpora, Baramulla, applied for passport in 2007 but was not issued the document because the CID said his brother was involved in militancy related activities. Sajad says his brother was 12 when he crossed the LoC in 1990 and came back after 4 months. After coming back, he was arrested by the CRPF and set free after 45 days. Now Sajad’s brother runs a shop and runs his own business for the past 16 years.

The High Court Bar Association president, Mian Abdul Qayoom, says sending documents for clearance to police officials does not come under the provisions of the Passport Act. “It is the discretion of Passport Officer whether to grant the document or not. If he refuses, the concerned person can challenge it before the appellate authority,” Qayoom said, while referring to Maneka Gandhi passport case.

Talking to media, the regional passport officer, BS Manwalan, said everybody was eligible for passport, adding, “Passport department is a small office and hence we give verification part of the process to the state police. We work on the recommendations of the police and after their green signal issue the passport.”

TORTURE TESTIMONIES

Name: Ghulam Mustafa Bandey

Age: 35

Education: NA

Occupation: Government Service/Fisheries

Civilian/Militant: Civilian (no association with militants)

Association: Not affiliated with any organisation

Religion: Islam

Nationality: Kashmiri/Indian

Address: Handwara

Date of Interview: 14th April, 2008

In August 5, 2008 there was curfew in the valley during which the military had warned the people of Handwara region to keep inside their houses. After the daily Namaaz at the masjid, Ghulam’s family heard a child’s wail, who was being beaten by alleged men from the armed forces. The neighbours had already gathered and were raising slogans against the valley. Ghulam’s uncle, hearing the commotion, came out of the house to check what was going on. During this time, the army had started using gunfire and tear gas against the people. In this process, a stray bullet hit Ghulam’s uncle in the stomach. Ghulam and few relatives transported him to the district hospital with their bare hands. There were immediate agitations against this incident in the neighbourhood and near the hospital. The entire family reached the hospital and saw the police trying to control the crowds. Tear gas was the first phase of the police’s attack on people. They then used force and lathis to control the crowd. In this process Ghulam was also beaten up by the police and he was injured on his shoulders. He then heard that his uncle was to be transported to Srinagar and he was to accompany his uncle’s family, however he was detained in the hospital. From there he and five others were taken to the SOG camp in Handwara. The police took of all their clothes and their hands were bound by ropes and handcuffs. Ghulam also mentions that there were 20 others already in the camp. The police continued to beat them with iron and gaze rods for four to five hours. They were forced to lie down and were beaten again by three policemen at a time. They were given only breaks for the time taken for three other police to replace the ones who were doing the beating.

After the death of his uncle, there was a political pressure on the police so they stopped beating him and the others in custody. The police were forced to release him and his family. They were promised that there would be no case against them. But fifteen days later, they found out that there was one case against them in the court. He was charged under Sections 188, 148, 149, 353, 333 and 307 of RPC. 

He received no medical treatment in custody. But a doctor was asked to come home (as he wasn’t even able to move). Ghulam says that at times, the pain attacks him in his private parts when he sleeps. He had take leave for 10-15 days from his work after which he returned. Currently, there is an ongoing case against him. He says he feels betrayed that whatever was done to him by the police has been used as allegations against him in the charge sheet. 

Name: Mohammed Iqbal {Name Changed)

Age: 22

Education: 12th Standard. His education was interrupted because of the incident

Occupation: Shopkeeper

Association with militancy: His friends and relatives have been involved with JKLF. 

Civilian/Militant: Civilian

Other associations: None

Address: Batamaloo, Srinagar

Date of Interview: 18th April. 

The year was 2000. One summer morning, 13 year old Iqbal was walking back home from school when he was suddenly asked to stop by some BSF people. They wanted to question him regarding a grenade blast. On asking his address, an area well known for producing militants, he got beaten up. This was in Karanagar. When he attempted to complain to the local police, he was abused and slapped there as well. 

Two years later, he was often questioned about his relatives who were associated with militancy. At this point, he was approached by JKLF to join the group. He became active in protests. He says that he joined them for safety – from police and otherwise.

By March 2007, he had become known to the local police. He had developed an enmity with SHO Ali Mohd. Dhar, who informed about him to the CRPF. Consequently, he was taken to the CRPF Bunker. He was kept there for three days. From there he was taken to Pampore Police Station where he was kept for fifteen days. An FIR was filed against him where he was charged with attempting to kill the SHO.  He was kicked and beaten by the gun butts. Current was passed through his body. He was wounded by knives and red chilli powder was put on his wounds. He was suspended from the ceiling and his head was dunked in water. They also bound his face with a cloth and water was poured which he had to drink. A roller was used on his legs and stomach. He was kept there for ten days and tortured daily for two-three hours. 

A bail application was filed by his family members because of which he was supposed to be released but the bail was denied. This was because the police had filed an affidavit saying that he had been arrested only a day before although ten days had passed.

Then he was kept for a further five days in the station. After that he was taken to the court and released. He received self-financed medical treatment for four to five months. In the course of the treatment, he was unable to eat because he was constantly vomiting. Today his stomach and legs still hurt. No psychiatric help was ever sought. Since he was caught during the course of his education, he has not been able to continue. He today claims that he is being constantly monitored by the police and has to report to the station before every strike. There are nine FIRs against him (Flag burning, attempting to kill the SHO, unlawful association etc) and the case is still continue. He is not allowed to leave Lal Chowk.

11 DETAINEES ACCUSE POLICE OF TORTURE

COURT DIRECTS SSP TO LOOK INTO COMPLAINT

Oct 29: The 1st Additional District and Sessions Judge directed the SSP Srinagar to look into a complaint of eleven detainees who have accused police of torture in custody. The persons were arrested on October 27 by Mahraj Gunj Police Station under FIR no 95/09 under section 152, 336, 148. “The Court took serious note of the allegation after the accused persons including four minors stated they were forced to go for sodomy with each other during custody,” their counsel Bashir Siddique told media. 

He said the accused persons were students and were appearing in the Matric examination. Bashir said the persons have been booked for stone pelting and were brought to the Court this afternoon. The written complaint lodged by the accused through their counsel in the case- State versus Asif Ahmad Bhat and Others -says “They have been brutally tortured in the lock up and torture marks are visible on their bodies. 

“The minors who have been described as accused informed the Court that they were forced to go for sodomy with each other by police. The whole episode was filmed by the police officials with mobile cameras and they were deriving pleasure out of it,” Bashir said in the complaint.

The parents of the arrested youth informed the Court that they have paid money for their food despite bringing food for them from their homes. “They informed the Court that the accused were horrified and were not in position to walk and the treatment meted to them reminds them of Abu Gareeb,” Bashir said.  

The 1st Additional District and Sessions Judge has directed the SSP Srinagar to take appropriate action “under the law.” The Court has forwarded the complaint to the SSP in original. The SDPO Maharaj Gunj, however, described the allegations totally false. “The accused are known stone-pelters. They were on police remand and nothing of that sort has happened,” he said. He said had this happened in police custody, police would have released them instead of taking them to the Court for giving testimony. He said some vested interests were trying to make issue out of nothing.

2 KASHMIRI CRICKETERS DETAINED IN BANGALORE; RELEASED
Oct 17:  In yet another case of harassment of Kashmiris outside State, two young cricketers were arrested by Karnataka police in Bangalore. The duo was released in the evening on the intervention of BCCI and Jammu and Kashmir Cricket Association president Farooq Abdullah.. J&K CM sought an explanation from the DGPs of Karnataka.  

Talking to media, Joint Commissioner Crime Karnataka, Alok Kumar said the two cricketers, Parvez Rasool and Mehraj uddin Dar, who were staying at the Karnataka State Cricket Association (KSCA) complex in Chinnaswamy Stadium, were detained on suspicion of possessing “Remote explosive detector” and some other objectionable material.  

He said police questioned them about the objectionable material. “We have not found any explosives from them but the material might have been used in the past for carrying out explosions in various parts of country. The bags have been sent to forensic laboratory for tests,” Kumar said. The police officer said investigations have been launched in the case. 

Bangalore's police commissioner Shankar Bidari told newsmen in Bangalore that police acted on a tip-off from the stadium staff. “When police entered the room, the instruments pointed towards a bag but no explosives were found in it. Even then, as a measure of precaution, we took two youth and their bag in custody.” 

Bidari said the bag might have been used to transport explosives, which could have been shifted to another place. Coach of Jammu and Kashmir team, Abdul Qayoom Bagow said Parvez and Mehraj objected to searching of their bags, which contained copies of Holy Quran.He said police used sniffer dogs to search their bags. “Parvez and Mehraj objected to sniffing of the dogs at their bags, which infuriated the policemen, who took them into custody”.

Describing the incident as a sheer harassment with Kashmiris, he said, “The two cricketers were picked up by police and kept in two separate rooms. The incident has left all the boys shell shocked”.

Meanwhile, the Jammu and Kashmir Cricket Association said the cricketers are innocent and don't have any criminal record.Ehsan Mirza, a senior JKCA official said, “Our Under-22 team reached Bangalore on Friday evening (Oct 16) from Bhubaneswar. Today morning policemen visited the KSCA and picked two of our boys and interrogated them. We are not happy with the incident. This is the height of indecency”.

JKCA  joint secretary, Ghulam Mohammad said the duo were released in the evening on the intervention of Board of Control for Cricket in India, Cricket Association Karnataka  and JKCA president and union minister Dr Farooq Abdullah.
On October 19, the Chief Minister Omar Abdullah said the young cricketer Pervaiz Rasool, who was detained and later released by Bangalore police, was made a scapegoat as nothing incriminate was found in his bag. Talking to media persons on the sidelines of a function at Kashmir University, Omar said he doesn’t come before media a lot and that does not mean that government led by him was sitting idle over the detention of two cricketers in Karnataka. 

“I have sought an explanation from the DGPs of Karnataka and Jammu and Kashmir. The JK DG was in a constant touch with his Karnataka counterpart. The moment Pervaiz was detained, we shared all information about him with the Karnataka police after which he was released,” Omar said. He said he came to know that the machine that was used to check Pervaiz’s bag was faulty. “Pervaiz was unnecessarily made a scapegoat,” Omar said.
GOVT GUNMEN REIGN “TERROR” IN HANDWARA 
Oct 30: Atrocities by the government gunmen and inaction by the police forced a Handwara resident to approach chief ministers’ grievance cell for safety from government gunmen (Ikhwani), who have abducted his son and he is disappearing in custody. He alleged that a government gunman threatened to kill his family. 

The application addressed to chief minister by Ghulam Ahmad Lone, a resident of Check Sodal Handwara says that his son Showkat Ahmad Lone a student of higher secondary school Handwara left for school on April 15, 2006 and was picked up by Sumo borne gunmen from Handwara town. The searches for Showkat were carried out, but he remained untraced. 

Ghulam Ahmad writes that two government gunmen Bashir Ahmad Sheikh of Bakiaker Handwara and Manzoor Ahmad Lone of Check Sodal Handwara, those working with and IB officer and police demanded a sum of Rs 50,000 for release of his son. “Police did not arrest them,” Ahmad said adding that he paid Rs half lakh to them. “Now he is demanding Rs 80,000 for release of my son. I told the police, but they did not arrest him,” alleges Lone. 

He said now these two government gunmen threatened to kill his whole family, if Lone did not stop search for his son. “They will kill me and my family,” Lone said adding “Every morning and evening they threatened me and I approached police and they did not take any action against them.” 

Ghulam Ahmad alleged that both the government gunmen were patronized by police in Handwara. “They are sitting with the Dy SP for the whole day in Handwara,” Lone said. “They are working with police, army, IB and other security agencies and they carry weapons along with them round the clock,” he adds and repeats, “They will kill my family as they did to one son.” 

Additional secretary to chief minister under the heading Important Public Hearing (IPH) has asked the DIG Baramulla to investigate the matter and asked police to trace his son.

PROTESTS IN KISHTWAR

POLICE REGISTERS CASE AGAINST 2 SPOs ON FORCING YOUTH TO DIE IN CHENAB

On October 6, police have terminated the services of two Special Police Officers and registered case against them for forcing a youth to jump into the river Chenab, where he drowned and died. The death of 19-year-old Muhammad Hanief son of Ghulam Hassan, resident of Shashoo, brought villagers into the roads as they blocked the Kistwar-Himachal highway for hours demanding stern punishment to the accused.    

             Reports said SPO Noor Hussain, a relative of an abducted girl, picked up three youth of Shashoo and allegedly tortured them in his bid to trace the girl. The reports said that girl was allegedly abducted by Farooq of Kidroo Padder. Noor along with his associate Muhammad Akbar during alleged questioning forced Muhammad Hanief, son of Ghulam Hassan, resident of Shashoo, to jump into Chenab where he died. The death of Hanief triggered protests and residents of Shashoo, Kidroo and Kijae blocked the road till SDPO Padder assured them of action against the accused. Dy SP Mohan Lal Thakur said both the SPOs have been terminated and police have registered a case at police station Padder against the accused.  
RETURN OF KPS

CABINET APPROVES WG RECOMMENDATIONS ON PANDIT REHAB

Oct 1: The State cabinet approved recommendations of Prime Minister’s Working Group on Confidence Building Measures that is headed by Vice President Hamid Ansari and the recently constituted apex committee for the smooth return of Kashmiri Pandits.However, the job bonanza portion for KPs has been deferred by the cabinet keeping in view the swelling number of unemployed youth in the State, sources privy to the cabinet meeting said. 

Besides, the cabinet also discussed employment draft policy for the unemployed youth prepared by the members of State Financial Commission. However no consensus evolved on that. During the two-and-a half hour cabinet meet that started at 5 pm, the cabinet ministers discussed threadbare recommendations of Prime Minister’s Working Group on CBMs that include a portion of recommendations on the smooth return of internally displaced KPs.

“The recommendations of recently constituted 30-member apex committee on KP return were also discussed. The cabinet later approved both recommendations,” a minister who attended the meeting told media. The minister said the cabinet, however, deferred the portion of 6000 jobs to the unemployed youth willing to return to Kashmir. “The issue was discussed threadbare. Later it was decided that the portion be deferred for sometime keeping in view the rising number of unemployed youth in the State.”

Sources said many ministers were of the view that approving jobs to KP youth, at a time when the State was facing the problem of unemployment, may trigger crisis. “One of the ministers said approving 6000 jobs to KPs at this juncture doesn’t suit the government,” sources said. “Keeping the apprehensions in view, the cabinet later deferred the job package for KPs.”

Under the PM’s package, KPs willing to return are entitled to have Rs 7.5 lakh for the construction of houses, 1.5 lakh for the furniture and fixture while Rs 5 lakh with 50 per cent subsidy would be provided to the educated over-aged unemployed KP youth for starting their own business venture after returning to Kashmir. 

The PM’s Working Group has recommended 6000 jobs with 50 per cent jobs from the State and 50 per cent from Government of India. Sources said the cabinet also discussed the draft employment policy prepared by the members of SFC for tackling the unemployment problem of the State. However, no consensus evolved on it and the issue was kept for the next cabinet meeting. 

Meanwhile, KP leaders including President of the Kashmiri Pandit Sangarsh Samiti, Sanjay Tickoo and Lok Janshakti Party leader Sanjay Saraf welcomed the cabinet decision. However, both leaders expressed apprehensions over delay in the job package to KPs. “What will an unemployed youth do in Kashmir if he will not be provided with a job,” Tickoo said. “Delaying the job package indicates that the government is not serious in the return of KPs.”

Saraf, who is also the member of the apex committee, said: “I welcome the cabinet decision. I had recommended that there should be proper interaction between KPs willing to return and the Muslim brethren. Besides, I had also advocated that there should be satellite colonies for the KPs willing to return. If government will agree to the satellite colonies for Pandits, the dream of having a separate homeland for KPs demanded by Panun Kashmir will shatter the KP community.”

PSA A STATE TOOL

· DON'T DETAIN KU STUDENT UNDER PSA: HC
Oct 9: The High Court directed state not to arrest, Dawood Ahmad Dar, son of Bashir Ahmad Dar, a post-graduate student of University of Kashmir. Dawood, a resident of Rassu in Budgam was arrested under FIR no. 208/08 registered in police station Beerwah under section 212 RPC; subsequently he was released on bail. The then SSP, Budgam had forwarded dossier to the deputy commissioner to detain Dawood under PSA in July 2007 and the then deputy commissioner passed the order of detention on January 10, 2008.

 Meanwhile, challan was produced before the court against the petitioner and he is being tried for offence under section 212 RPC. The detention order was never served upon the petitioner and remained unexecuted for almost two years. While arguing the case, counsel of the petitioner, M Ashraf Wani, submitted before the court that the order of detention cannot be executed at this stage as the purpose and object of the detention was frustrated by the act of the state authorities. 

 He submitted that the case strictly falls within the guidelines laid down by the Supreme Court. After hearing advocate, the court directed the state not to arrest the petitioner till next date and the court posted the case for further hearing on October 13. 

· HC QUASHES DETENTION OF SHOPIAN IMAM
Oct 15: The High Court quashed Public Safety Act against three detainees including the Shopian cleric who was the first person to be booked under the Act on the 32nd day of the 47-day long agitation in the southern Kashmir district against twin rape and murder of two women during the intervening night of 28 and 29 May this year.

After hearing the arguments from petitioner and defense, Justice Sunil Hali found as inadequate the evidence produced by state administration to make any person apt to be booked under the act and subsequently quashed detention orders against Abdul Hai Lone of Kachidora Shopian.The court also directed the authorities to release him forthwith in case he was not sought in any other case.

Hai, an Imam (clerics) of a local mosque was arrested in September 21 this year and subsequently booked under the PSA for ‘fermenting trouble’ by the district administration. His arrest came during the massive protests and strike in Shopian against the twin rape and murder of Asiya and her-sister-law Neelofer.  Advocate Moulvi Mohammad Iqbal pleaded the case of Hai.

Justice Sunil Hali also quashed detention orders against senior Hurriyat Conference (G) leader, Sheikh Mohammad Abdullah and a detainee Ghulam Mohammad Dar. The detainees were represented in Court by Kashmir High Court Bar Association President, advocate Mian Abdul Qayoom.
KASHMIRI UNDER TRIALS DEMAND SPEEDY TRIAL

Oct 19: Ten under trials hailing from Kashmir, who are languishing in jail for the last 13 years in connection with the Lajpat Nagar bomb blast, have urged the Chief Justice of India and the Union home ministry to expedite their trial. “We have been trying to get ourselves heard, but so far our requests have fallen on deaf ears. We have moved the Delhi high Court to seek speedy justice,” said a letter written by one of the accused.

 The letter has been addressed and sent to the home ministry as well as Chief Justice of India Justice K G Balakrishnan.

 Ten people, including a woman, are facing charges of carrying out the blast at the crowded Lajpat Nagar on May 21, 1996, in which 13 people were killed.

 Those facing trial are Farooq Ahmed, Muhammad Naushad, Mirza Iftikhar, Muhammad Ali Bhat, Mirza Nissar Hussain, Latif Ahmed Waza, Syed Maqbool Shah, Javed Ahmed Khan, Abdul Gani and Farida Dar. They claim that they have been falsely implicated in this case. All the accused except Farida Dar are in judicial custody.

SUBMIT JAIL STATUS IN 15 DAYS: HC TO GOVT

Oct 19: The Division Bench of High Court directed the State government to submit a detailed report about the number of inmates lodged in different jails across the State and the total capacity of the prisons within 15 days. The Division Bench headed by Chief Justice Barin Ghosh heard three petitions filed by Bar Association dealing with the detainees and their conditions in the jails across the State. These petitions were referred to Division Bench in 2006 by former High Court Judge, Justice Bashir Ahmad Kirmani. 

The petitions wanted to know the number of Kashmiri detainees booked under Public Safety Act and lodged in different jails in Jammu or other states of India. The petitions had prayed that the State government be directed to provide a permanent escort to the jails so that the visits of the under trials to the courts are hassle free as it has been observed that police fails to arrange the escorts to produce the detainees in the courts. The petitions had also prayed that the government be directed to provide better medicare facilities to the detainees in jails or setup permanent hospitals with good medical facilities. It had also been prayed that government be directed not to shift Kashmiri detenues to jails outside Kashmir and facilitate the availability of foreigners facing trial in different cases in Valley courts.

Bar president Mian Qayoom appraised the court about the pathetic condition of detenues in different jails within and outside Kashmir.  He also made the court aware about the findings of the five-member Bar team that recently visited different jails in Jammu. Quoting extensively from 1982 A K Roy Judgment of Supreme Court, Bar president opposed the shifting of Kashmiri detainees to outside jails. The state’s counsel Advocate General Mohammad Ishaq Qadri placed his objections before the court. 

After hearing arguments of both the sides, the Division Bench while reserving its final judgement directed the State Government to submit a detailed report about the total number of detainees languishing in different jails of the State and the total capacity of these jails within fifteen days. The court also directed the Bar to furnish the detailed report about its recent visit to Jammu jails within fifteen days.

‘SHIFT KASHMIRI DETAINEES TO VALLEY’
Oct 22: Four-year-old Shahid Ahmad is too young to comprehend the tragedy that has befallen his family following the detention of his uncle, Mushtaq Ahmad Wani. Shahid was part of the sit-in protest in Srinagar by International Forum for Justice/Human Rights Forum Jammu and Kashmir to demand shifting of Kashmiri detainees to the state jails. Mushtaq’s family demanded his shifting to Valley.

Mushtaq was picked up by Delhi Police three years back and has been since then languishing in Tihar Jail. A policeman, Wani was the security guard of senior PDP leader, Muzaffar Hussain Beigh’s brother, Khazir Mohammad Beigh. He was charged of having militant links and being involved in unlawful activities while he was returning from his trip to Ajmer on November, 25 2006.A resident of Shirpora, Pattan, 25-five-year-old Mushtaq worked in Auxiliary (Home Guard). He married just a month before he was taken into custody near Jamia Masjid Delhi. His family alleges that he was arrested on baseless charges. 

In tears, Mushtaq’s grandmother, Mahtaba Begum said, “He is innocent and he should be back.” His brother Shams-u-din said, “We have moved from pillar to post to seek the release of innocent Mushtaq, but we only get assurances. We approached every leader in Mufti and Abdullah governments urging them to press for shifting Mushtaq to Kashmir jails, but all in vain.”

Mushtaq’ father Ghulam Muhammad said that the family had to sell half of its property and land for managing money so that they could meet him in Tihar Jail. “He was arrested while he was fetching his return ticket from a travel agency. This is the height of injustice. Even policemen aren’t secure in this state,” he accused.  

Meanwhile, International Forum for Justice/Human Rights Forum Jammu and Kashmir has demanded that Kashmiri prisoners detained in jails outside the state should be shifted back to Jammu and Kashmir as many affected families can’t afford to move outside the state to meet their loved ones. 

“We had filed a petition in the Supreme Court for the transfer of these detainees, but it was denied saying that we are suffering from psychological problem”, chairman of the Forum, Muhammad Ahsan Untoo accused. The forum members protested against the injustice meted to the Kashmiri prisoners in outside state jails. “Despite court orders the prisoners are kept in jails at Tihar, Jodhpur, Agra, Rajasthan, Tamil Nadu, Ajmer and other jails outside state,” Untoo said.

He accused the home department as the main agency responsible for the plight of the prisoners since it was concerned with clearance of prisoners.Untoo was himself detained for more than five years in Tihar jail and was released only a month back. He has urged Union Home Minister, P Chidambaram and the Chief Minister, Omar Abdullah to intervene in the matter and seek transfer of Kashmiri prisoners to local jails so they can stay closer to their homes and families.
FAKE ENCOUNTERS 2007

PARIHAR AMONG 5 DENIED BAIL

On October 8, a Srinagar court dismissed the bail plea of five accused including a former SSP in the infamous fake encounter killing cases that rocked Jammu and Kashmir in 2007.Principal District and Sessions Judge, Srinagar, Hasnain Masoodi, who is presently hearing the cases, dismissed the bail plea of the five accused in the abduction and killing in fake encounter of a carpenter from Kulgam, Abdul Rehman Padroo and Molvi Showkat alias Showkat Kataria, an Imam from Srinagar's Zadibal area.

In the case registered in Police Station Zadibal under FIR No.4/2007, the accused, former Ganderbal senior superintendent of police Hans Raj Parihar and Ashraf Khan had moved a bail application before the judge. After hearing both the sides, Justice Masoodi dismissed the bail plea on grounds that “statements of the witnesses are still being recorded by the trial court and the trial has been going on at a fair pace, without any hindrance as far as the recording of statements of witnesses is concerned”. 

While dismissing the bail plea of the accused, the judge held, “It would be premature at this stage to grant them bail.” The case relates to the abduction and killing of Imam Molvi Showkat Kataria by the accused.

In another fake encounter case involving the abduction and killing of Abdul Rehman Padroo from Kulgam, four accused, including former Ganderbal SSP Parihar, former DSP Bahadur Ram, Zaheer Abbas and Farooq Padroo, had moved a bail application before Judge Masoodi. But the judge, after hearing both the sides, dismissed the petition, thereby not granting them bail. A case under FIR No. 06/2007 stands registered in Police Station Batamaloo, which is now being heard by Judge Masoodi. 

The prosecution has named a total of 85 witnesses in the infamous fake encounter killing cases. The case is being argued by senior public prosecutor Farooq Kathwari, who opposed the bail of the accused. After protests broke out throughout the Kashmir Valley over the killings, the Jammu and Kashmir Police on February 3, 2007 arrested then Ganderbal SSP Parihar and DSP Ram Bahadur, in connection with the murder of at least three innocent Kashmiris.

Parihar was chief of the Special Operations Group, which allegedly shot dead the three men and branded them as militants. A Special Investigation Team (SIT) of Jammu and Kashmir Police was tasked with investigating the deaths and exhuming dead bodies of the fake encounter victims in 2007. 

The victims were identified as Abdul Rehman Padroo, a carpenter who disappeared on December 8, 2006, Nazeer Ahmed Deka, who was killed in an alleged fake encounter in Ganderbal in February 2006 and Molvi Showkat Kataria, who disappeared in October 2006 from Zadibal area of Srinagar.

Before arresting the two police officers, the SIT exhumed Padroo’s body in Sumbal area of Baramulla district in the last week of January 2007.The bodies of Deka and Showkat were exhumed from Saloora and Ajas villages  of Ganderbal. Assistant Sub-Inspector Farooq Ahmad Gudoo and Constable Farooq Ahmad Paddar were already under arrest in connection with Padroo’s death.

Subsequently, on February 8, 2007, five more policemen were arrested from Srinagar and a police official detained by SIT in connection with the fake encounter killings.

Although three challans have been produced but in one of the cases, the prosecution is yet to produce a chargesheet against the accused. All these cases are presently being heard by Judge Masoodi.

2004 QAZIGUND BLAST CASE
SIX ACCUSED ACQUITTED BY TADA COURT
Oct 9: The special TADA court in Srinagar acquitted six persons accused in the 2004 Qazigund Blast case in which 27 BSF personnel were killed. On May 24, 2004 militants targeted a bus carrying BSF personnel on Srinagar-Jammu Highway in Qazigund area of South Kashmir. The blast ripped through the bus killing 27 BSF men. Among the dead were relatives of some of the soldiers.

Hizbul Mujahideen had claimed responsibility of the attack which took place at Gulab Bagh (Lower Munda).A case was registered in Police Station Qazigund and subsequently seven persons were arrested and declared accused by the police in 2004. The prosecution, after investigating the case produced challan against the seven accused in the same year in the special TADA/POTA Court in Srinagar, where the trail went on for almost five years.

The accused, who were acquitted by the TADA/POTA on Thursday included Mukhtar Ahmad Shah of Yaar Khushipora, Qazigund, Mukhtar Ahmad Bhat of Charrat, Qazi Gund, Mohammad Yaqoob Teli of Charrat,  Mohammad Abbas of Charrat, Aashiq Hussain Rather of Yaar Khushipora, and Tariq Ahmad Mir of Yaar Khushipora.

Among the seven accused, against whom the police produced challan in the TADA Court, Mukhtar Ahmad Bhat became an approver, who deposed against the other six accused in the court. But during the later part of the trail, he turned hostile and retracted his earlier statement given to a police officer, which under POTA was admissible as evidence in the court of law.

On part of the accused, the case was represented by senior lawyer Syed Tassadque Hussain, who was later on assisted in the case by former Bar President and senior lawyer Advocate Nazir Ahmad Ronga. 
Hussain  said, “The learned magistrate has no jurisdiction to recall the statement of the accused under section 164 of CrPC as the case was registered under  Explosives Act of 1965 and only special judge  should have granted pardon, which in this case even he could not grant because it was judicially proven by the  statement of the accused and the Investigation Officer (IO) that the accused (Mukhtar) was kept in Interrogation Centre for over a month and subjected to third degree torture and under severe compulsion and threat to his life was forced to become an approver for the prosecution.”

Husain further added, “The statement of Mukhtar was legally flawed. The Criminal Court should extract exemplary damages as the accused persons are not kept in the Police Station as is directed under the law, but taken straight away to Interrogation Chambers and held incommunicado and are subjected to third degree torture practices, which are banned under the conventions of UN Security Council.”

After the TADA/POTA Court announced its verdict acquitting the six accused, Hussain told media, “The TADA Court categorically held that under severe pressure he was asked to make statements against the other accused in order to save his life. It has been further observed by the judge that the prosecution miserably failed to substantiate its case hence the accused are acquitted.”
HC DIRECTS GOVT TO REGISTER FIR AGAINST ARMY

Oct 18: The High court has directed the state government to register FIR against the Army and pay a compensation of Rs 10 Lakh ex-gratia to the family of the labourer, who was subjected to an enforced disappearance by army’s 7 Rashtriya Rifles. The Court directed police to identify the army men involved in disappearance of Muhammad Yousuf Dar son of Muhammad Ahsan of Bagh-e-Sakloo, Kulgam and initiate action against them. 

The district session’s judge Islamabad, who was also the inquiry officer in the case, had last year indicted the army’s unit for the disappearance and had presented the report before High Court. The Court heard the petition filed by Dar’s brother Muhammad Maqbool and rejected all the reports and arguments put forward by CID and Police.

The counsel for the petitioner, Advocate Ghulam Qadir Bhat informed the Court that Dar was detained by the troopers of 7 RR, stationed at Bahi Bagh camp, on the intervening night of June 6 and 7, 1995. He said two of his neighbors, Zahoor Ahmad Kuchay and Khurshid Ahmad Dar, were also detained but were released later. He said the troopers then subjected him to enforced disappearance.

CHATTISINGHPORA MASSACRE: WITNESSES TURN HOSTILE
Oct 18: Three witnesses, including a survivor, who had suffered bullet injuries during the Chattisinghpora massacre in south Kashmir, have turned hostile in a Delhi court and refused to identify the accused who gunned down 35 Sikhs nine years ago.Nanak Singh, 52, who had lost his son, Gurmeet Singh, and brother, Dilbari Singh, in the killings on March 20, 2000, said he could not see the assailants as he was unconscious.

“I can’t identify the accused persons. I was one of the injured and after the incident I became unconscious and did not see the assailants. My son and brother were killed... They were made to stand in a line,” he deposed in a Sessions Court here.Nanak, an Islamabad resident, testified that he had remained in a hospital and was discharged after eight months. In the cross-examination by the special public prosecutor, B B Sharma, Nanak said he could not say whether the accused, present in the court, were among the assailants.

Karam Jeet Singh, 50, another Sikh from Chattisinghpora, failed to identify the accused in the court, saying he did not know the persons who opened fire on the villagers, nor did he know the place they belonged to.

Two suspected Lashkar-e-Taiba militants, Muhammad Suhail and Waseem Ahmed, who hailed from Sialkot and Gujranwala respectively in Pakistan, are facing trial in the case.The case relating to the massacre was transferred here by the Supreme Court in November 2008.Karam Jeet was one of the Sikhs made to stand in a line in front of a Gurudwara in the village by the assailants who collected all the male members on the pretext of launching a manhunt for militants and opened indiscriminate fire on them. He escaped the bullets because, he said, he had gone to fetch milk for his ailing child.

Another Sikh resident of the Chattisinghpora, Gurmukh Singh, who was one of the prosecution witnesses, refused to identify the accused saying he could not see them. However, he added that a total of 15 to 20 men had come in Army uniform and killed people after forcing them to stand in a line near the Gurudwara.A total of 11 prosecution witnesses have been examined so far in the trial which had been transferred from a Kathua court to the Delhi court.
GOVT GUNMAN GETS LIFE SENTENCE FOR KILLING  IN PULWAMA
Oct 12: A court sentenced to life imprisonment a government gunman man for killing a student in Pulwama after tying him up with a tree in full public view. In his judgment, Justice Kakar Singh Parihar sentenced Mushtaq Ahmad Ganai alias Musha Ganai, a government gunman to life imprisonment for taking a student into custody with the help of Army and then killed him by tying him with a tree.  

 
The court also charged him under section 323/34 awarding imprisonment for six months and a fine of Rs 5000. The court directed that the convict be kept in Srinagar central jail.

 On September 13, 1994, the government gunman Mushtaq Ahmad Ganai of Chandgam Pulwama with the help of Army personnel of 22 Grenadiers arrested a student, Riyaz Ahmad Wani son of Ahmad Wani of Batanoor, Pulwama. Ganai and the Captain Sharma of 22 Grenadiers had tied him to a tree with ropes and beat him up. He was later released in serious condition and later he succumbed to his injuries on way to hospital.

 A case 1123/94 was registered in police station Pulwama under section 302, 323, 354, 34 RPC and investigations were started accordingly. No action has been taken against the Army captain even as police had said a separate challan would be produced against him.
MILITARIZATION

· ORCHARDS UNDER OCCUPATION

TRAGPORA RESIDENTS AWAIT COMPENSATION SINCE ‘92

Oct 06: As if the occupation of their land by troops was not enough, the orchard owners in Tragpora, Rafiabad have been bereft of even the compensation. They claim that more than 40 kanals are under the occupation of troops since 1992 and even though they made efforts to seek compensation from the government, but to no avail.

Ghulam Hassan Mir, one of the owners said, “Our files are pending in divisional commissioner’s office for many years. They assured us full compensation many times, but so far they haven’t paid a single penny,” adding, “From the last few years after there was no progress in the case we gave up all the hopes of compensation.”

The locals who have land in the vicinity of the camp (32 RR) also accuse the troops of restricting their movement in their land. “They have also erected barbed wire in the remaining land and don’t allow us to enter our orchards. They don’t allow us to plough it. Whenever we attempt to go there, they send us back. Our trees are damaged as we can’t spray pesticides due to restrictions,” an orchard owner said on the condition of anonymity.

The locals also blamed that the army is attempting to grab the remaining land in the vicinity also. “Every year they grab land in yards and erect barbed wire. In 1989, when militancy erupted in the valley, army occupied building of HPMC and its land spread on about eight kanals. But since then they kept grabbing land and chopped about 1200 fruit trees in the process. They didn’t even allow us to take timber of those trees,” another land owner said, pleading anonymity. “Today they have about more than 40 kanals of land under occupation and still they keep grabbing more,” he added.

The fruit growers in the area allege that the troops take fruit boxes from them and during the night steal fruits from orchards. “Whenever we pass with a truck of empty fruit boxes, they ask for some of them and in the late night they pack these boxes with fruits which they steal from the nearby orchards,” a fruit merchant said.

The commuters have also alleged inconvenience at the hands of the troops with the roads being encroached by their bunkers and erecting fencing on the roadside. “The troops are causing much inconvenience to us. They have erected fencing and bunkers on both sides of the roads of Tragpora, and they are keeping tyres on Baramulla-Handwara highway unnecessarily,” a commuter, Rafiq Ahmad said.

The commuters also allege that the troops are forcing them to disembark the bus and walk about 50 meter distance. Drivers are asked to make entry in their log book. They also alleged that the troops board public buses for travel and force passengers to go on the top of the bus. “They force us to go on the top of the bus and occupy our seats. We feel very insecure as vehicles carrying troops are prone to attacks,” Muhammad Yousuf, a commuter said.

· TROOPERS VACATE HOTEL MANAGEMENT INSTITUTE CAMPUS

Oct 14: After more than 19 years of its occupation, the Central Reserve Police Force has finally vacated from the buildings which were few years back allotted to the Institute of Hotel Management at Rajbagh.The presence of troopers inside the campus has triggered unrest among the students, mostly non-local who had recently threatened to leave the institute in case the troopers were not withdrawn. 

Seeing the troopers vacate the campus buildings at Rajbagh, the students heaved a sigh of relief saying they would now have an “academic environment” rather than being surrounded by armed troopers. Academic coordinator and senior faculty member Malik Altaf said, “Since our intake strength has increased considerably we were facing severe shortage of the space as the hostel blocks were under troopers’ occupation. We in fact were committed to provide hostel accommodation to our students at the time of their admission in this Institute. So we wanted the hostel blocks to be ready before our session started from third week of July.” 

 The troopers had been occupying the buildings which were later turned into Hotel Management Institute hostel blocks and staff accommodation since 1989-90. “The only building that was available with us for the academic purpose was the main building,” said Altaf. 

 Faculty members said the blocks were occupied by different troopers including BSF and CRPF. Finally, the blocks were under the occupation of 21 BN-CRPF.

 “The blocks that have been vacated are mostly damaged, so now we will soon be renovating them,” said Faheem Ahmad, a faculty member. “Then we will also expand the hostel area, so that more blocks could be come up there,” he said. 

 Pertinently, the building that was occupied by the CRPF troopers is located in the midst of the other hostel buildings and adjacent to girls’ hostel. Surrounding the building were a chain of bunkers and some urinals with barricades put around. Vehicles of the troopers would remain parked in the parking area of the institute namely M T Park. 

 With troops putting up in the building next to theirs, the girl students, all of whom are non-locals, said they felt insecure all the time. They said they had to pass between the barricades to reach the hostel, which, they said, would be very difficult for them.
· ARMY PULL OUT BEGINS
33-RR MOVES OUT OF HANDWARA, 49-RR VACATES QAZIGUND
Oct 18: Barely a few days after the Union Home Minister, P Chidambaram, said that “quiet and unique” solution of the Kashmir issue was in offing, army has started pulling out from the Valley. According to the sources, army has pulled out a battalion of 33 Rashtriya Rifles from Handwara in north Kashmir and another battalion of 49-RR from Qazigund in south Kashmir.  

 “The process to reduce the troop strength in the Valley has started,” said a top official. He said the frontier district of Kupwara was the most “vulnerable route” for militants to infiltrate. “One battalion of army being pulled out from such a sensitive district shows that some serious steps are in offing to make headway towards resolving Kashmir,” he added. 

 Sources said the camps that were set by the 33-RR wouldn’t be abandoned and the troopers of other battalions present in the district would be shifted there. A top police official of the district said that army had informed them that one RR battalion had been pulled out. “We were surprised to know that army is moving out,” he added.

 
Asked whether it was a routine exercise, he said, “Had this been a part of the routine exercise another battalion would have replaced the outgoing party. We have been told that no new battalion will come. The four battalions of RR, 21,30,6 and 33, which come under 7-sector were deployed in Handwara in 1990. It is for the first time that any of these battalions has been asked to move out of the area.”    


 Another battalion of 49-Rashtiya Rifles has moved out from south Kashmir’s Qazigund area, sources said. They said troopers had vacated their camps. “It seems that they had got the marching orders this week,” a police official said. He said that police was informed about the troops vacating the area. “I believe two battalions pulling out from north and south Kashmir are a part of phased withdrawal of troops,” said a senior army official wishing anonymity. “Army is usually pulled out from those areas where situation becomes normal,” the official added.   

· IQBAL NAGAR RESIDENTS IN SOPORE DEMAND CRPF WITHDRAWAL
Oct 18: The residents of Iqbal Nagar Sopore are suffering immensely due to the heavy presence of para-military CRPF troopers in the colony who have virtually turned the area into a garrison. The colony entry point is heavily guarded with two bunkers on the both sides and barbed concertina wire spread along the road leading towards the telephone exchange. The telephone exchange and assistant superintendent of police office also lies in the vicinity of the camp, which has been put up by the troopers. Residents of ten houses, which are close to the camp ‘feel ‘insecure’. 

 “Time has come when troops should leave our locality,” said a septuagenarian, Ghulam Rasool. A resident pleading anonymity told media that the troopers were not allowing them to enter through the lane towards their houses with vehicles. “We have to opt for other route which adds 2 kms more to reach home. We face lot of inconvenience due to the presence of camp here,” he said.

 Troopers have blocked the entrance of the road, which leads to the Iqbal Nagar. No public transport is allowed to ply through this road. The visitors to the telephone exchange are frisked at least twice. Locals alleged that if anyone fails to prove his identity he is not allowed to enter into the area. 

“After dusk only persons whom troopers know by face are allowed to enter. When we several times requested to the commanding officers to allow the traffic to ply on the road, he said that if anything untoward happens we will be held responsible. We are living in terror, even our women folk here can’t move freely,” they alleged. They appealed to the authorities to intervene into the matter and lift the restrictions in the area. 

 The PRO, CRPF, Prabhakar Tripathi told media that they can vacate the location after they will be provided with alternate accommodation. “Our men are there only for the security. If the residents have any inconvenience they should lodge a complaint in respective police station. The state government pays the rent for the accommodation which we are using anywhere in the valley,” he said.

 Meanwhile, SSP, Baramulla, Viplav Kumar said, “People should come to us if they have any complaint.”

· ARMY MISUSING STATE LAND: JK GOVT

Oct 25: The Jammu and Kashmir government has alleged that army officials posted in Ladakh division were using the patrol boat in the Pangong Lake and state’s land to entertain their families. In an affidavit submitted before the Jammu and Kashmir High Court, state advocate general, M I Qadiri, while responding to army’s claim about a piece of land near the picturesque Pangong lake said, “Patrol boat in the lake is being used to entertain the family members of the army officials. It is neither used for surveillance or any other defence purpose.”    

 The affidavit was filed in response to army’s claim that police could not proceed against erring officials who had allegedly manhandled civil and police officials. The dispute was sparked after police secured a non-bailable warrant against three army officials -- major general Manvendra Singh (the then Brigadier), colonel M P Erray and Major S Dabbas -- from chief judicial magistrate in Leh for allegedly manhandling  civilian officials, who were returning from Pangong lake after demolishing the alleged illegal structure erected by the army in 2005. 
The officials had allegedly manhandled the then sub-divisional magistrate of Nyoma, Ali Raza, and two other officials.  The state also strongly objected to army’s claim that government officials were hampering the work of on duty army men. “It is not only the army which cares about the defence and security of the country but the civil administration is equally sensitive and responsible about it and provides logistic support.”

 The lake, situated at 13,900 ft and 168 km from Leh, is frequented by hundreds of foreign tourists. An Inner Line Permit is required to visit the lake as it lies on the Sino-India Line of Actual Control with two-thirds of it lying in China. It became the centre of a legal battle between state administration and the army over its ownership after the state planned to encourage tourism near the lake.

 The state also told the court that the army’s claim of the land in question being with it since 1962 was absolutely wrong as all land and Revenue records showed that it was a Wildlife sanctuary area and the army had “illegally” occupied and constructed a structure in 2005 only.

 “The plea taken by the petitioner (army) that the said land is in their possession since 1962 is incorrect when the fact is that they were illegally occupying the said land since 2005 to entertain their families and not for any defence purpose,” the affidavit added.

BRIEFS

· MERCY JOB RULES RELAXED FOR SPOS’ FAMILIES

Oct 2: The government has amended the Jammu and Kashmir Compassionate Appointment Rules 1994 giving powers to the director general of police to appoint a family member of a special police officer in case he dies in “militancy related action.”  In exercise of powers conferred to him under the proviso to section 124 of the Constitution of Jammu and Kashmir, the governor, has amended the rule 5 of the JK Compassionate Appointment Rules 1994. 

 The proviso says in case an SPO, engaged by the police department dies as a result of militancy related incident and his family member applies for appointment against “a vacancy” to the DGP, he may issue appointment order for his or her adjustment in the police department after conducting necessary enquiry. Presently, there are 20,000 SPOs engaged by the police department.
· TROOPERS BEAT NEWS AGENTS

10 INJURED IN CLASHES

Oct 10: At least 10 people were injured during day-long clashes in Sopore town when the paramilitary troopers fired several tear gas canisters on the protesters. The CRPF troopers also beat up two news agents, Saleem Ahmad Dar of Muslim Peer and Tariq Ahmad Shah of Naharpora in Sopore in the morning when they were distributing newspapers.

 
The troopers also forcibly closed down the main market of the town and enforced a curfew in the area. Reacting to the rumours that a man was killed by the personnel on Oct 9, people protested and youth fought pitched battles with the troopers for the whole day. 

· BULLET WOUNDS GIRL

ACCIDENTAL FIRE: ARMY

Oct 30: An 8-year-old girl was injured when troopers allegedly fired towards her in Baramulla town. Locals alleged that troopers traveling in an army vehicle fired upon Ruqaya daughter of late Muhammad Ramzan Gojree near Khanpora without any provocation. She was rushed to a hospital where her condition was stated to be stable. However, army said the girl was injured in an “accidental fire.”

A police official said that preliminary investigations had revealed that the bullet went off from the service rifle of a trooper traveling from Baramulla to Sheeri. Police have registered a case.  

OFFICIAL STATEMENTS
· 47 MILITANTS, 9 TROOPERS KILLED SINCE JAN: IGP
Oct 1: Police said 47 militants and nine army troopers had been killed in 26 encounters across the Valley since January this year. It claimed that militants responsible for carrying out a deadly car blast outside the Srinagar Central Jail last month had been identified and they would be arrested soon.

“At least 56 persons, including 47 militants and nine army troopers have been killed, in 26 encounters across the Valley from January 1, 2009, till date,” the inspector general of police, Farooq Ahmad, told reporters during an informal chat here.

· SECURITY AGENCIES FEAR SURGE IN VIOLENCE  

Lashkar regrouped following land row, Shopian incident: IG

Oct 2: Following lethal violence which left 45 people including militants, civilians and troops dead in September in the State, security agencies predicted escalated militant related violence in the near future. “We expect more militancy in the coming days,” IG Police, Farooq Ahmad said during a formal interaction with journalists at Police Control Room.

Giving more details, the IG said due to land row in 2008 and recent disturbance at Shopian in the aftermath of double rape and murder incident, police had to utilize most of its energy in maintaining law and order. “Taking advantage of that, militant groups especially Lashkar-e-Toiba consolidated its position in the valley. They filled the vacuum at places wherever it was required,” Ahmad said.

 “Police was involved in some 26 gunfights this year,” Ahmad said. “Some gunfights where conducted with CRPF while others with army. A total of 47 militants, four of who were locals, were killed in these 26 gunfights.” He said nine army troopers were also killed while six sustained injuries.
· CAN’T LOWER GUARD:HOME SECY

Oct 6: The union home secretary, GK Pillai, said the security agencies shouldn’t lower the guard as militants were still active in Jammu and Kashmir though the state had witnessed substantial improvement in the situation. “The security agencies need to keep their guard up (as) there are still 600 to 700 militants active in the state,” Pillai, who was part of the visiting central delegation to Jammu and Kashmir, told media.

The team led by cabinet secretary,KM Chandrasekhar, reviewed the security situation in the state at a meeting with officials from different security agencies here before flying back to New Delhi.Pillai said there was a general discussion on different security related matters during the meeting. The heads of different security agencies gave their feedback about the situation, he said.

“The security agencies have achieved success in curbing infiltration. So far it has been so good but they have to keep their guard up,” he said.

· MILITANT’S SON NOT A MILITANT: CM

Oct 7: Asserting that a militant’s son was not a militant, the chief minister, Omar Abdullah, urged the people to work towards bringing smile on the faces of survivors of Kashmir violence. He made a specific mention of the ace footballer from Srinagar who had been selected for training in football skill in Spain but was denied the passport for his being a militant’s son, the chief minister asserted that the son of a militant was not a militant.

“The young boy was not even born when his father indulged in militant activities. Since the stopping of passport to the boy was against rule of law and natural justice, as such I intervened and got his passport released,” he said.

Omar said the government spent crores on seminars and conferences but instead if we could bring back smile on the victim’s face it will be a work worth more than crores. “If we replace the shadow of gloom from the faces of violence hit orphans and widows by a ray of hope and happiness, we have achieved something. Otherwise spending money and organizing functions and seminars are of little use,” he said addressing a one-day seminar on “Relief and Rehabilitation of Victims of Violence” at SKICC.

“The real work of Rehabilitation Council can’t be checked in files or papers but on the faces of victims,” he said. He asked the Rehabilitation Council to come up with more proposals aimed at welfare, rehabilitation and education of violence sufferers so that these are reviewed and projected for funding.

· MILITANTS CAN STRIKE ANY TIME: SAGAR  

IGP: POLICE, ARMY WORKING OUT STRATEGY TO DEAL WITH RISING ENCOUNTERS 

Oct 7: With law and parliamentary affairs minister Ali Mohammad Sagar claiming that militants are very active in Valley can strike any time, the Inspector General of Police Kashmir said police and army are working out a strategy to deal with the rising encounters. “We are jointly dealing with the situation that has arisen following the spate of encounters during past one month,” the IGP Kashmir Farooq Ahmad told media.

He said it is difficult to flush out the militants from North and South Kashmir as they were hiding in the dense forest area. “Army and police will evolve a joint strategy to meet this challenge and flush out the militants from the forests,” Farooq said. 
Another senior police official, wishing anonymity, said during the land row agitation last year, all security agencies remained focused on maintaining law and order. “All agencies, be it CID, CIK, DSB were engaged in giving feed back about law and order situation in their respective areas to their superiors. The militants cashed-in on this opportunity and started sneaking in,” he said. The official said the militants started regrouping few months back while Pakistan helped them by pushing in more militants.
· MILITANCY DECLINING: OMAR

Oct 7: The chief minister, Omar Abdullah, asserted that there had been a considerable decline in the militancy related incidents in Jammu and Kashmir in 2009.“This year has witnessed decline in militant activities and it’s a good sign,” Omar said after inaugurating model village facilities at Watlar and Shalbug in Ganderbal district.

He asked the media organizations “not to glorify” the militancy related incidents. “Media should cover the militancy related activities with proper care and understanding,” he added. He said militancy had adversely affected the economy but he reiterated his commitment to “usher a new era of peace and development” in the state.
· SECURITY FORCES ENJOYING UPPER HAND: OMAR

Oct 8: Chief Minister Omar Abdullah said that security forces are closely monitoring the present situation in the state and that they are enjoying an upper hand on militants. He was talking to media persons after an information technology related function at SKICC.
"Compared to last year the situation this year is better. My government is keen for further improvement in situation" chief minister said. He added that infiltration was still going on and security forces have been put on high alert to foil such attempts. "Even the central government is talking to Pakistan for stopping infiltration. Security forces are closely monitoring the situation and they have mounted enough pressure on the militants," Omar said. He added that he is hopeful that the situation would further improve in future.
· WE LOST 5279 MEN IN 20 YRS: DGP  
Oct 21: The Director General of Police, Kuldeep Khoda disclosed that 5279 troopers including policemen were killed in the State after the outbreak of turmoil in 1989.Speaking on Police Commemoration Day at Jammu and Kashmir Armed Police headquarters Zewan, DGP said 5279 personnel of police and security forces were killed in the State while fighting militancy during past 20 years. He said among the dead include 889 policemen, 470 Special Police Officers (SPOs) and 131 Village Defence Committee (VDC) members.

              DGP said as many as 821 police and para-military force personnel were killed from January 1, 2008 to August 31, 2009.  “The dead include 36 policemen,” he said. Stating that Police Commemoration Day is celebrated across India, he said, “Today, we assemble to remember our martyrs and pay them homage for their sacrifices to safeguard the sovereignty and integrity of the country”. He said the day has its origin in the event of October 21, 1959 when 10 CRPF personnel were killed while repulsing the Chinese attack at hot springs in Ladakh.

Giving details of the welfare measures initiated by the police department for the families of killed cops and officers, he said that each family is provided with Rs. 6 lakh from Police Welfare Fund, Rs. 5 lakh as ex-gratia relief, Rs. 7000 each under Savera Scheme besides scholarship and free education to the wards of deceased cops in Police Public Schools at Jammu and Srinagar. Each family also gets Rs. 2.5 lakh SLI raising the total amount to Rs. 13.5 lakh.
· K SOLUTION MUST FOR PEACE: OMAR  

‘YOUTH DIDN’T PICK UP GUN FOR JOBS, DEVELOPMENT’

Oct 28: Asserting that Kashmir solution is must for peace, the chief minister Omar Abdullah said the youth of Valley had not taken to gun for money or development but for resolution of Kashmir, which was a political issue. Addressing people at Wanpoh ,Islamabad, Omar said, “If I talk only about development that won’t be good. Jammu and Kashmir is not a money issue. Youth did not pick up the guns for money, jobs and development 20 years ago. The gun was there because Kashmir was a political issue, which should be resolved politically”.

He said Home Minister P Chidambaram recently announced that all groups would be engaged politically. “We will help you in resolving the Kashmir issue so that the threat of gun ends and the wounds of people could be healed once for all,” he said, adding, “State witnessed death and destruction during last 20 years”. Omar said, “If we want peace, we have to resolve Kashmir issue".

The chief minister said it was for the first time he felt that peace had returned to Kashmir. “This is for the first time that Prime Minister and other dignitaries are addressing a public rally in Kashmir without any bullet proof cover,” he said adding, “The improvement has to be carried forward till permanent peace and tranquility is restored in the State”.

· SECURITY FORCES' PRESENCE TO CONTINUE: GOC

 AFSPA SHIELD FOR SOLDIERS

 AGITATIONAL TERRORISM CAUSE OF CONCERN 

 COMMITTED TO HUMAN RIGHTS, ABERRATIONS HAPPEN
 Oct 31: A day after union home minister P Chidambaram said the government was mulling vacation of occupied houses and land by the army and withdrawal of paramilitary forces from the valley, the army said the presence of security forces will continue till the threat of re-emergence of militants is eliminated. The assessment on the quantum of forces required is an ongoing process and reviewed periodically. Presence of security forces will continue till the threat of re-emergence of militants is totally eliminated, General officer Commanding-in-Chief of the Northern Command Lt Gen B S Jaswal told a news conference at the Northern Command headquarters here.

Gen Jaswal, however, said the decision to send the army back to the barracks was a political one. Army has a defined mandate and is deployed to carry out the role and tasks assigned to it. To withdraw the army back to the barracks is a political decision, he said and added the deployment of troops would essentially be driven by the adjustments and changes based on security review that take into account the threat and overall situation in different areas. The requirement of security forces is based on numerous security parameters. The number of militants is one important factor. It is important to assess the situation based on attempts to infiltrate, the presence of over-ground workers (OGW) and whether people feel safe or not, Gen Jaswal said.

The GOC-in-Chief said the Armed Forces Special Powers Act (AFSPA) is a shield for the soldiers deployed in the State.AFSPA, despised by the people of Kashmir, is a shield to the soldiers working for a cause, he said.Jaswal, in his first media interaction after taking over charge of the command on October 1 this year, noted that militancy had come down and said that the army was in a position to tackle all crises.

Expressing concern over, what he called the agitational terrorism in the state - referring to the frequent street protests and shutdowns. Jaswal said though violence in Kashmir was on the decline since 2006, with just 36 incidents of violence reported this year as compared to 276 in 2006, the agitational terrorism was a cause for worry.

The term agitational terrorism, he referred to the street protests and shutdowns that started with the Amarnath land row agitation in the Kashmir valley last summer, halting normal life for weeks together. Widespread protests in 2009 too rocked the state with the latest being over the alleged rape and murder of two women in Shopian.

He stressed that the army would ensure that no human rights violations occurred, but added that minor aberrations here and there cannot be ruled out. My orders are to the troops - not only fight insurgents but also insurgency because that is the root cause of the whole trouble. The army commander said that since 2005, 561 soldiers have died while fighting militancy, while 2538 militants were killed. He said inputs of sporadic and localized fresh recruitment are coming in from Doda, Kishtwar, Ramban, Bhaderwah and some other parts of the state.

EXPLOSIONS

· 7 INJURED IN LAL CHOWK BLAST
Oct 6:Seven persons - two troopers and five civilians - were injured when unknown persons lobbed a grenade on a BSF Gypsy near Lal Chowk.Eyewitnesses said the assailants hurled a grenade on a BSF gypsy (No.WB-74 K-3114,) parked near the Pladium street in Lal Chowk.

Two BSF troopers standing near the vehicle were injured. Five pedestrians, including two women, were also injured in the blast,” the senior superintendent of police, Javaid Riyaz Bedar, told media. The rear side of the gypsy bore the brunt of the explosion. The BSF troopers were accompanying an assistant commandant who was shopping in the near-by market, police said.

The blast created panic in the area with shopkeepers closing their shops and running for cover. Senior police officials visited the spot to assess the situation.
· ARMY JAWAN DIED IN LANDMINE EXPLOSION

Oct 18: An army jawan died in a landmine explosion at Patri Gali in Balakot sector of tehsil Mendhar of district Poonch.The deceased jawan has been identified as Nail Dinker Maruti Niley son of Maruti Naley of Satar district in Maharashtra state. Police said that Niak Dinker was on patrol duty at Patri Gali (Balakot sector), when he lost balance and accidentally put his foot on an IED, which exploded with a big bang at 10:30 am. He died on the spot in the explosion.

· POLICE STATION SOPORE ATTACKED

Oct 19: Suspected militants made an abortive bid to blow up the police station in Sopore town police said. “The suspected militants hurled a grenade at Police Station Sopore, the device exploded with a big bang without causing any damage,” a police official told media.
· BLAST KILLS GUREZ BOY  

Oct 22: 10-year-old boy was killed and his cousin critically injured when an unexploded shell they were fiddling with exploded in Tulail village of Gurez. “10-year-old Jamsheed Ahmad Lone son of Azizullah Lone and his 17-year old cousin Shaheena had gone to the meadow at village Sadniya Tulail in Gurez to herd the animals. They found an unexploded shell and started fiddling with it. The explosive device went off with a big bang, causing on spot death of Jamsheed and critically injuring Shaheena,” Station House Officer Police station Gurez Muzaffar Ahmed told media. He said the explosive device was probably an old live bomb shell.
· DRUNKEN TROOPER KILLS 2 COLLEAGUES
Oct 31: A drunken Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) trooper shot dead two of his colleagues and injured two others in Kokernag area of Islamabad district. Sources said that Hawaldar Ramesh Chandra (belt no 90094702) of CRPF 164 Battalion, in an inebriated state opened fire on his colleagues inside the battalion headquarter in Kokernag resulting in death of two Hawaldar, while another Hawaldar and a constable suffered serious injuries.
Sources said that the injured troopers identified as Hawaldar Bimen Maltha (Belt No 801290555) and Constable Himayen (Belt No 005130766) were admitted to Army hospital. The deceased troopers have been identified as Tufail Ahmad and Sada Shiv Tiwari.Sources said that Chandra opened fire from his service rifle following altercation with his colleagues. Soon after the incident, sources said, troopers rushed out of the camp and overpowered the drunken trooper.
PRO, CRPF, Prabhakar Tripathi said that Chandra opened fire on his colleagues in a drunken state causing death of two of his colleagues while injuring two others. “Chandra was in a drunken state when he opened fire on his colleagues. Two were killed and two others were injured in the firing,”Tripathi said.

“The accused has been handed over to police. The injured CRPF men have been admitted in army hospital for treatment,” he added.Meanwhile, police has filed a case and started investigations in this regard.

KILLINGS IN THE MONTH OF OCT -2009

	  DATE
	SOLDIERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	Oct 01
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 02
	-
	3
	1
	1 (Former militant)

	Oct 03
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 04
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 05
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 06
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Oct 07
	-
	5
	-
	-

	Oct 08
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 09
	-
	3
	-
	-

	Oct 10
	-
	4
	-
	-

	Oct 11
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 12
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 13
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 14
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 15
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 16
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 17
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Oct 18
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 19
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 20
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 21
	-
	3
	-
	-

	Oct 22
	-
	1
	1
	-

	Oct 23
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 24
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Oct 25
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 26
	-
	3
	-
	-

	Oct 27
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 28
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 29
	-
	3
	-
	-

	Oct 30
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Oct 31
	2
	2
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	3
	22
	3
	1

	                                                IN TOTAL
	29 Killings


	Date
	Custodial and Extra judicial Killings
	Women Killed
	Children Killed
	Alleged Disappearances

	OCT 2-2009
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Oct 22-2009
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Oct 24-2009
	1
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	1
	0
	2
	0



ENQUIRIES ORDERED
	S. No. 
	Victim’s name and address 
	Brief incident details 
	Agency involved
	Probe ordered by
	Remarks 

	1. 
	Irfan Ahmad Lone s/o Ghulam Rasool Lone of Drangbal 
	On October 2, Irfan Ahmad was killed by a teargas shell allegedly fired by police while disbanding a usual Friday protests
	Police 
	Deputy Commissioner (DC) Lateef-u-Zaman Deva ordered a magisterial probe into the killing and appointed Additional Deputy Commissioner Mohammad Ashraf Shantoo as inquiry officer.
	

	2.
	Ghulam Mohi-ud-din Ganai of Ganaipora, Kralgund, Handwara
	Sajad Ahmad Ganai, was allegedly shot dead by the troops of 32 Rashtriya Rifles (RR) camped at Watergam. 
	32 Rashtriya Rifles (RR) camped at Watergam.
	On October 25, the deputy commissioner, Kupwara, Showkat Ahmad Mir, ordered a magisterial inquiry into the killing. The Additional Deputy Commissioner has been appointed to conduct the inquiry and submit a report within a month. Army also ordered separate inquiriy into the killing. 
	


CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS

Oct 1: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Oct 2: A minor, Irfan Ahmad Lone, 12 was shot dead and four persons received injuries when police resorted to baton charge and fired teargas shells to quell usual post Friday prayers demonstration in Baramulla. Meanwhile, paramilitary Border Security Force claimed to have foiled an infiltration bid by killing two unidentified militants in R S Pura sector in Jammu division. A militant was killed in a gunfight with troopers in frontier district of Kupwara. In another incident, unidentified gunmen shot dead a former militant outside Jamia Masjid in Sopore.Police said Shabir Ahmad Wani, 45, s/o Ghulam Ahmad Wani of Batapora, Sopore was gunned down when he came out of the Masjid after offering Friday prayers.Wani received bullets in his head.
Oct 3: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Oct 4: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Oct 5: At least seven persons were injured in the clashes between policemen and protesters in Baramulla as demonstrations against the killing of a 12-year old boy, Irfan Ahmed Lone, who died after being hit by a tear smoke canister on Oct 2.
Oct 6: Police said that two militants were killed and two troopers were injured in separate encounters. A section commander of the Hizbul Mujahideen identified as Muhammad Usama was killed in a gun battle with troops at Marmat in Jammu’s Doda district. Another Hizb militant, Javed Iqbal son of Ghulam Ali of Dadni Marmat Doda was killed in an encounter at Chenani in Jammu’s Udhampur district. Meanwhile unidentified persons hurled a grenade at a paramilitary BSF gypsy at Lal Chowk in heart of the city. At least seven persons, including two BSF men, were injured. 
Oct 7: In four different gun battles in valley five militants were killed while as two troopers were also injured critically. Two encounters took place in Handwara tehsil of Kupwara district and other one in Awantipora area of Tral.Troopers of 21 RR,1 Para and police killed two unidentified militants in Sajkotchi forests of Zachaldara, Handwara, while another militant was killed in Behnipora village of Handwara by the troops of 21 RR.One unidentified militant was killed while as two troopers were also injured critically in the encounter at Ladoo Tral.In Baramulla, police claimed to have killed district commander of Hizbul Muzahideen identified as Abdul Majid Bhat.

Oct 8: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Oct 9: A joint party of policemen and troopers claimed to have killed two militants in Ramban district.Meanwhile, a Hizbul Mujahideen militant Omar Maviya was killed in a gunfight with police at Gusso Pulwama.In another incident, a VDC member was shot at and injured when suspected militants fired upon him in Jammu's Reasi district. At least two boys sustained serious injuries after police and CRPF men opened indiscriminate fire on youth during a protest demonstration in Sopore.After the Friday prayers, youth took to roads in Sopore and staged demonstrations to protest the continued house arrest of Hurriyat (G) chairman, Syed Ali Geelani. Chanting pro-freedom, pro-Geelani and anti-India slogans, the agitating youth were demanding Geelani’s release. As the protestors tried to march ahead, police and CRPF men swung into action. They resorted to baton charge and fired tear smoke canisters. Two youth identified as Rafiq Ahmad Sheikh of Batpora and Mushtaq Ahmad Shah of Shalpora Sopore received bullet injuries on legs in CRPF firing.
Oct 10: Army claimed to have foiled an infiltration bid in Gurez sector by killing three militants. Meanwhile, a Hizbul Mujahideen militant was killed in a gunfight in Doda district. The slain militant has been identified as Liaqat Ali Gujjar alias Junaid of Lallar Doda, Kachari.                                                                            
Oct 11: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Oct 12: No incident took place. 
Oct 13: No report of violence was reported from any part of the valley.
Oct 14: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Oct 15: No violent incident took place.
Oct 16: A Special Operations Group (SOG) man was injured in an ongoing gunfight between militants and troopers at Sopore in North Kashmir’s Baramulla district. The injured SOG man has been identified as Nek Kumar.

Oct 17: Police claimed to have killed a district commander of Harkat-u-Jihade-Islami (HUJI) in a fierce gunfight in Kishtwar.
Oct 18: An army jawan died in a landmine explosion at Patri Gali in Balakot sector of tehsil Mendhar of district Poonch.The deceased jawan has been identified as Nail Dinker Maruti Niley son of Maruti Naley of Satar district in Maharashtra state
Oct 19: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Oct 20: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Oct 21: Army and police claimed to have killed three top militants including a divisional commander of Hizbul Mujahideen outfit at Daggan Top on Mahore-Gool border in Reasi district. Slain militants have been identified as Mushtaq Ahmed Bhat alias Maqsood son of Ghulam Mohammad Bhat, a resident of Moila, Gool and a divisional commander of Hizbul Mujahideen, Mohammad Rafiq alias Murshad son of Lakhia Bakerwal R/o Chalad, Arnas and Mohammad Arshad alias Tahir son of Mohammad Hanief R/o Sushwan, Gool.

Oct 22: A militant was killed in a gunfight with 22 Rashtriya Rifles and SOG personnel at Chak Roday Khan, Sopore. Meanwhile, a 10-year-old boy identified as Jamsheed Ahmad Lone son of Azizullah Lone was killed and his 17-year-old cousin Shaheena was injured when an unexploded shell they were fiddling with exploded in Tulail village of Gurez.
Oct 23: At least 12 persons were injured when police used force to quell a pro-freedom demonstration in city centre.
Oct 24: A student identified as Sajad Ahmad Ganai son of Ghulam Mohi-ud-din of Ganaiepora, Kralgund village of Handwara was killed by troopers at Watergam, Handwara. Army claimed that the youth had ‘intruded’ inside their camp and attacked a trooper by axe before being shot dead.However,the relatives of Sajad alleged that Sajad was killed in custody by 32 RR personnel inside their camp at Watergam along the Baramulla-Handwara highway.

Oct 25: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Oct 26: Police claimed to have killed three militants in an encounter in Shalidar village in Shopian district. The two slain militants have been identified as Saqib, divisional commander of Hizbul Mujahideen and Riyaz Piswal. Meanwhile, at least nine persons including three policemen were injured in violent clashes between troopers and youth at Maisuma.The clashes were triggered by rumours about the death of a minor, Arif Ahmad, who was critically injured in police action on protesters on Oct 25.                   
Oct 27: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Oct 28: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Oct 29: A militant was killed when troops fired upon a group of militants attempting to sneak into this side of the Line of Control in Karnah sector.Meanwhile, a Lashkar commander and his associate were killed in an encounter near Mendhar in Poonch district. The slain militants have been identified as Abu Umar and Babar Khan.

Oct 30: Army claimed to have foiled an infiltration bid in frontier district of Kupwara by killing two militants.Meanwhile, an 8-year-old girl identified as, Ruqaya daughter of late Muhammad Ramzan Gojree was injured when troopers allegedly fired towards her in Baramulla town.
Oct 31: Two militants were killed in an encounter with troops at Chanki Pora Sopore.One of the militants has been identified as Zubair Ahmad of Pakistan.Meanwhile,a drunken Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) trooper shot dead two of his colleagues and injured two others in Kokernag area of Islamabad district. The deceased troopers have been identified as Tufail Ahmad and Sada Shiv Tiwari. 

COURT AWARDS DEATH SENTENCE TO MILITANTS GUIDE


Oct 1: The principal sessions Judge, Subash Chander Gupta, awarded death sentence to Muhammad Taj, son of Muhammad Nazir of Raj Nagar Budhal Mohra Gabbar on charges of being guide to militants who allegedly killed five persons on October 2005. 


 Announcing the sentence, he said. “Had the accused not acted as a guide, the militants would have not succeeded in the killings.” Earlier, on September 4, principal sessions Judge, Reasi, A K Koul had awarded death penalty to one Abdul Rashid, whom police had  accused of being Hizb militant involved in the killing of a 70-year-old man and two minor girls in Mahore last year. 





WOMEN / CHILDREN KILLED


Oct 2: A minor, Irfan Ahmad Lone, 12, son of Ghulam Rasool Lone of Drangabal, was killed and four persons were injured when police resorted to baton charge and fired teargas shells to quell a pro-freedom demonstration in Baramulla.


Oct 22: 10-year-old boy identified as Jamsheed Ahmad Lone son of Azizullah Lone was killed and his cousin 17-year old Shaheena was critically injured when an unexploded shell they were fiddling with exploded in Tulail village of Gurez.
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Being minor, he couldn’t run fast to reach to  a safer place.


The doctors pumped his heart and immediately declared him dead


Deputy Commissioner told media that the probe panel has studied the video footage of the incident that suggests Irfan died due to injuries inflicted on his back and side of neck





COURT DIRECTS GOVT TO RELEASE STUDENT’S PASSPORT


Oct 21: The High Court directed the government to release the passport of a student Saqib Murtaza, whose deceased father, Advocate Ghulam Mohideen Regoo, according to the police, was a separatist. The court rejected state government’s assertion that his late father, who was killed 11 years ago, was a separatist.Saqib had filed a petition in the High Court after he was denied passport clearance by the police department. 


 	The state government through deputy advocate general informed the court that the father of the petitioner was killed in militancy related activity. However, counsel of the applicant Mian Abdul Qayoom denied the charges. He said the applicant’s father was lawyer who was killed by government gunmen and army.


 “Regoo was taken away from his home in presence his wife Masooda Parveen and his two sisters on the evening of February 1, 1998 by an army major accompanied by two government gunmen. Police handed over his body to the family three days after his abduction,” Qayoom informed the court.    


 He said that the petitioner’s father was killed when he was only 11. He informed the Court that despite the tragedy he continued his education and got admission BSC Forestry in the Agriculture University. He said the petitioner had got admission in MSC Marketing in a University in London. “He has not been able to join the University as he was denied the travel documents,” the defence counsel said.        


 After hearing the arguments of both the sides the court asked the government to release his passport within two weeks. The court observed that there was no criminal case against the petitioner and the government had no right to deny him the passport.





BAR TEAM TO VISIT JAILS


On October 15, the High Court Bar Association on a programme of jail visits, visited Udhampur jail. The Bar team comprises president Mian Abdul Qayoom, vice president Ejaz Bedar, general secretary Ghulam Nabi Shaheen, Muhammad Iqbal Dar, Manzoor Ahmad Dar, Muhammad Rafiq and Bashir Sidque 


The team alleged that the jail manual is not being followed by the jail authorities. A Bar spokesman said, “A five member team headed by president Bar Association, Mian Qayoom visited Udhampur jail and held detailed interaction with the inmates. During the interaction, the detainees complained that the jail authorities are not ensuring their presence in courts on day of trials. They are not being produced in the courts, thus delaying their trial”.


.The Bar spokesman said the detainees complained that authorities were not giving them the facilities as are provided under the regulations of the jail manuals. “The detainees requested the visiting lawyers for the speedy proceedings of habeas corpus matters pending before the courts in Kashmir,” he said.
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